REquest for Proposal
Department of Finance and Administrative Services 


RFQ/P Project Planning 


This assists you through a competitive solicitation process, with step-by-step guidance and a checklist to plan your process 





	Checklist of Events
	Checklist
	Typical Schedules 

	Name your Team , Rough out schedule
	Done  |_|                  
	

	Begin Team Meetings
	                  
	Week 2

	· Complete Background Statement
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Complete Objectives
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Complete Scope of Work
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Prepare list of consultants and WMBE firms 
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Edit Sample Questions in the RFQ/RFP
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Discuss evaluation process
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Confirm scoring strategy 
	Done  |_|                  
	

	· Do you need interviews?
	Done  |_|                  
	

	Finalize RFQ/P 
	Done  |_|                  
	Week 3

	Schedule Evaluation and Interview Team, book rooms
	Done  |_|                  
	

	Publish the RFQ/P (on the website, in the newspaper)
	Done  |_|                  
	Release Date

	Pre-Proposal Conference 
	Done  |_|                  
	Release + 1 week

	Deadline for Questions 
	Done  |_|                  
	Release + 2 weeks

	Deadline for City to Reply to Questions
	Done  |_|                  
	Release +2 weeks

	Proposals Due 
	Done  |_|                  
	Release + 3 weeks

	Review Responses for any immediate issues (minimum qualifications, lateness, etc)
	Done  |_|                  
	RFP Due + 1 day

	Evaluation 
	Done  |_|                  
	RFP Due + Days 2,3,4

	Select Most Competitive Proposers 
	Done  |_|                  
	RFP Due + Day 4

	Interviews if any
	Done  |_|                  
	RFP Due + Day 5, 6

	finalize award decision
	Done  |_|                  
	RFP Due + Day 7

	Announce intent to award
	Done  |_|                  
	Award Day

	Obtain Final Documents from Vendor (W-9, etc)
	Done  |_|                  
	Award + 1

	Negotiate and Sign Contract
	Done  |_|                  
	Award + 10





 The First Steps

Start-Up

Is it an RFP or RFQ?  Select an RFQ (select on their qualifications only) or a Request for Proposal (evaluates and scores various factors, such as pricing, experience, technical strengths).

Name the Team:  The Team helps draft specifications and may evaluate, score and interview if needed.  Invite team members.  Select those willing to commit time, readily available during the project, and have expertise.  Check for any conflict of interest. Three to seven is an effective team size.
	
Rough out a Schedule:   Make a rough schedule of major steps.


Drafting the RFQ/P Package
	
You (and your team) will now make decisions and begin to write some of the information you will be inserting into the RFQ/P document:

Background Statement:  Write a brief (perhaps two-paragraph) background statement.  Explain why the City wants this, what started this (an ordinance, Mayor’s initiative, etc), the history and purpose.  

Deadline, schedules:  Specify timelines for deliverables, and whether deliverables have firm deadlines or are negotiable.  Consider any transition time for a new provider.

Minimum Qualifications:  are there any minimum qualifications interested firms must have?  This should be rare because it w will automatically eliminate firms that might otherwise be very capable of performing your work.  Be clear the difference between what you require of the Company and instead, what you require of their Project Manager employed by the company. 

· Examples of Minimum Qualifications that might be appropriate in special situations:  
· The Company (or, if you want the Project Manger experience instead, be clear you intend this to mean the Project Manager and not the company) must have been in the business two consecutive years, without interruption.
· The Company must have a licensed electrician at time of bid. 
· Examples of inappropriate Minimum Qualifications:
· Company must be responsible, experienced and capable.
· Company must have good references. 

Solicitation List:  Prepare a list of all the consultants you intend to seek.  Search for women or minority owned firms.    

WMBE:  Be sure you include the WMBE Inclusion Plan.  If a federal project, you would use the Consultant Inclusion Plan – Federal.  PCSD can provide you additional advice about when it is appropriate to use the federal form in lieu of the traditional WMBE Inclusion Plan.  Remember it requires at least 10% of your evaluation points.
 




Preparing the RFP Vendor Questions
Now prepare questions you wish to ask of Consultants to understand their abilities and qualifications.  


RFQ/P Design - Evaluation and Scoring
Decide and describe your selection and scoring process. Review and confirm with your team.  Basic Guidelines:
1. Keep scoring simple and easy to understand.  You may have a complex project, but design no complex scoring system.  Complexity adds risk for errors, reduces transparency of decisions, and increases protests.  Do not use complex formulas, weighting, special rankings, and detailed criteria.  Avoid highly detailed and/or mathematical scoring formulas.  

2. Use simple scores.  No weighting.  Total possible scores will automatically reflect the value of each criterion. You will not need a weighting or ranking process to do that.   If total possible points are 100, give more points to the most important items.  We therefore eliminate additional weighting and ranking calculations.

3. Figure out how you plan to score.

· Each question (or group of questions) should be assigned possible points (see sample below). Review and confirm this reflects the priority for your project. A&E selections may not use pricing.  Pricing is negotiated after you select an A&E firm.

	
	Total possible points

	Pricing 
	150

	Management Response (experience proposal plan, staffing, etc.)
	250

	Technical Response
	500

	WMBE
	100

	Grand Total
	1,000



· References are probably best as a pass/fail and performed after you pick your otherwise highest-ranked company.
· Scores are done on comparative basis; the best response – when compared to all the others - gets the highest points. 

4. Confirm how you will score.  Each person individually?  Or the team agrees on a score?  

· The standard approach is Team consensus.  Team members review responses and discuss until the team gets to consensus.  This approach:
· Reduces the exposure of any individual member since no individual scores are taken, particularly if a public disclosure request arrives;
· Reduces potential for errors in tabulations;
· Simplifies the scoring process;
· Allows experts at various items to have a decisive input.

· Individual points and scores.  Team members score individually and discuss among team members only if desired. Scores can be adjusted if the scoring member learns anything new from talking to team members. Tabulate points and top candidates are the highest scored. This approach ensures:
· Each member has an equal voice;
· No team member provides influential discussion or information.




5. Do you need to conduct interviews?  Or can you decide with the results of your paper scoring?

If you are not sure whether you want to interview, the RFQ/P can reserve it as a City option.  However, if you indicate that interviews will be performed, then you must do so. Be sure your team has time available and is prepared to interview within one to two weeks after the RFQ/P submittal.  

Do you plan to add up the Written Proposal Score + the Interview, then the total wins?  Or will the interview stand-alone?  This is significant to the outcome, so think carefully about the decision. 

Rescoring:  Sometimes we learn new information in an interview or demonstration.  Do not rescore the written result, unless that was discussed before the evaluation team began.



Book the Rooms

Block out time on your Teams’ schedule to evaluate responses and interview time slots.  Do this early because everyone’s calendar is busy.  Lots of advance time is needed to get team members in the room together.  


Finalize the RFP/Q
· If advertising is needed, for those RFQ/Ps selected above the thresholds and are not Consultant Roster selections, post on the City Consultant portal and advertise in the Daily Journal of Commerce.  EBid should not be your posting point, unless you have complex blueprints or must track every person that views your RFQ/P.
· Conduct a pre-bid conference. Lead the Q&A session.  Take notes of every question and answer
· Issue a “Q&A” to document all the questions and answers you give, and post onto the website next to your RFQ/P.  Changes your requirements, then you issue an Addendums.  



Responses Arrive
Verify responsiveness (response arrived on time, mandatory forms were returned, Consultant Questionnaire submitted, etc) and responsibility (they have a reasonable financial profile and are not debarred).   

Review the Consultant Questionnaire to ensure there are no “red flags”.  Should you require a background check for a particular scope of work (on any and all employees of the firm), then you would do so at this point or after initial selection decisions. The Consultant Questionnaire can be found here: http://www.seattle.gov/Documents/Departments/FAS/PurchasingAndContracting/Consulting/3ConsultantQuestionnaire.docx and should be requested and reviewed of every company before you award.



Evaluation and scoring begins.  Provide copies of the eligible responses and begin reviews.     Meet, score, total and award. 
· Evaluation should begin promptly after responses arrive and continues on consecutive days until done. 
· To open the meeting, distribute the “Evaluation Letter” to the Team.  
· Score every item as you promised when you planned your scoring.  Don’t skip scores; provide a score for each item.
· When Evaluation is done, collect the scores, add them up and document decisions.
· To select competitive firms for interviews, go from the highest-scored down the list in consecutive order until the Evaluation Team determines there are enough firms to consider. Pay attention to where WMBE firms are when you make the cut-off, to ensure WMBE firms are given an opportunity to present if they are reasonably competitive.
· Dispose of personal notes not important to the decision.  
· Collect and keep the Forms or checklists that document decisions.  
· Ensure scores are carefully documented and easy to understand, and will place all the scores and forms into the contract file.



[bookmark: _MON_1559389107][bookmark: _MON_1499663344]
	
Interviews/Demonstrations
· Interviews immediately follow scoring.    
· If the RFP/Q promised an interview, they must be conducted.  No matter how obvious the selection results, the interviews would have to be performed. Interview all top candidates in consecutive order of competitiveness.
· 
[bookmark: _MON_1296654295]Distribute an interview “Do’s and Don’ts” Letter to your interview team.  			

Negotiations and Award: Check for the “contract exceptions” that the Proposer’s gave to you with their submittal.  Consult with Law for the Team if needed.  If negotiations fail, resume only with the next highest ranked Proposer.  Execute the contract with your Department head signature (or appropriate delegated officer) and the Consultant signature (an official officer of the company).  The signors may date their signature, however it is unnecessary since the contract effective date shall prevail.

Contract Invoice Preparation: The Project Manager or your AP Office will contact the Consultant Billing preparation representative, who is named by the consultant on their Consultant Questionnaire.  Provide the billing person a sample invoice, and the invoice preparation checklist so help ensure they have good instructions on how to prepare an invoice.  Remind them that the Invoice Date they print on the invoice should be accurate as to when they actually send the invoice, and that it is important they keep attach clean records and documents with their invoice.





[bookmark: _GoBack]

	Confidentiality and Conflict of Interest
All documents, decisions, information and opinions are to be equitable and fair for all firms.  Do not share private information.  Once responses are received, all information is confidential and not to be shared to anyone outside of Team meetings. Do not have conversations, meals or contact with competitors or others about the evaluation until the contract is signed.  

Remember that Team decisions and materials are subject to public accountability.  Perform a fair evaluation of each proposal and set aside prejudices. Do not make, written or verbal, any derogatory or slanderous remarks.  Make only those remarks or notes that you would be willing to share.  The process is to be fair to all, to be thoughtful and deliberative.  It is an important responsibility that preserves the integrity of the public bid process.  


Please do Not:
· Do not discuss any aspect or any opinion of this process, the Proposers, proposals, or proposal ranking outside of the Committee forum;
· Do not accept gifts/meals or any type of gratuity or service from any Proposers;
· Do not give preferential treatment to any Proposer.

Conflict of Interest:  Please understand the policies regarding conflict of interest, to ensure that neither you nor your potential team members could be perceived to cause a Conflict of Interest. 
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FinMAP – 2012 Financial Accounting Standardization Project
Request for Proposals Evaluation Form

Vendor ______



Instructions:  Fill out one per proposal.  Save a copy of the file with the proposal vendor name and your initials included (Request for Proposals Evaluation Form _FinMAP_VendorName_Reviewersinitials.docx) in the proposal folder on the SharePoint site.





Name of Reviewer: ____



Date of Review: ______



Reviews will complete the Approach Section and the Experiences and Qualifications Section. Reference evaluation will be completed by the Project Manager.



Please provide a point score based on the Point Value provided for each evaluation criteria.  Please add your actual scores for each section to the Total Score section at the end of the evaluation. 



Experience Evaluation:

		

Criteria

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		

Comments



		Does the consultant have experience to address the specific requirements in the RFQ (for example, effective business process skills, organizational change management, elicitation skills, etc)?



Considerations:

Did the proposal adequately understand the requirements?  

Do they demonstrate their experience in these specific areas?

Do they address all areas identified in the RFP (such as business process skills, organizational change management, etc)?

		0-15

		

		



		Does the consultant adequately identify both internal and external teams for the projects with itemized project staff, roles and responsibilities with labor hours estimated by task listed in the scope of work?



Considerations:

Looking to see that the proposer has spent time to develop a complete project timeline with roles and responsibilities identified for the external and internal City team.

		0-10

		

		



		Maximum Evaluation Score:

		25

		

		







Approach Section Evaluation:

		

Criteria

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		

Comments



		Has the vendor demonstrated a complete understanding of the purpose and scope of the project, including what is expected of the consultant?



Considerations:

Did the vendor address the desirable skills and expertise (section 2) within their proposal to demonstrate they understand what the City is looking for in the consultant and what our expectations are of the consultant?

		0-10

		

		



		Has the vendor demonstrated an understanding of the deliverables the City is expecting them to provide?



Considerations:

Did the proposal weave in the deliverables as part of the proposed approach and demonstrate how all three of the projects worked together for the final upgrade roadmap?

		0-5

		

		



		Has the vendor demonstrated an understanding of the schedule and can the vendor meet the schedule and timelines?

		0-5

		

		



		Did the vendor provide any new flexibility/new concepts or alternative methods to accomplish the scope of work for this project?

Considerations:

The proposal should have included any new flexibility/new concepts or alternative methods in addition to the scope and deliverables provided in the RFP. 

		0-5

		

		



		Maximum Evaluation Score:

		25

		

		











Cost Section Evaluation:

		

Criteria

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		

Comments



		Does the proposal provide a detail cost breakdown for the project related to tasks, deliverable and hours?

		0-10

		

		



		Does the cost proposal stay within the $740,000 budget limit?

		0-5

		

		



		Do the cost proposal rates for consultants stay within the maximum rate per hour?

		0-5

		

		



		Was the consultant the low bidder?

		0-10

		

		



		Were the proposal rates all inclusive including travel and per diem?

		0-10

		

		



		Maximum Evaluation Score:

		40

		

		









Inclusion Plan Section Evaluation:

		

Criteria

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		

Comments



		Does the proposal provide a meaningful breakdown of tasks, scope, communication and ownership demographic?



Considerations:

Want to see that the proposer put effort into developing the WMBE inclusion plan and spent time thinking about the team dynamic and how the project will flow in terms of tasks, scope, communication and ownership.

		0-2.5

		

		



		Does the proposer indicate previous experience in assembling a diverse team including WMBE partners for projects of similar size and scope?

		0-5

		

		



		Has the proposer demonstrated good faith efforts towards including WMBE firms on this project?

		0-2.5

		

		



		Maximum Evaluation Score:

		10

		

		






Total Score:



		

Section

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		

Comments



		Experience and Qualifications

		25

		

		



		Approach

		25

		

		



		Cost

		40

		

		



		Inclusion Plan

		10

		

		



		Total Score

		100

		

		









Do you recommending bringing this Vendor in for an Interview?  ______Yes       _________No

Comments:
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Request for Qualifications Evaluation Form

Vendor: _____________________________________________________


Name of Reviewer: _________________________________________


Date of Review: ____________________________________________


Reviews will complete the Approach Section and the Experiences and Qualifications Section. Reference evaluation will be completed by the Project Manager.

Approach Section Evaluation:

		Criteria

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		Comments



		1. Has the vendor demonstrated a complete understanding of the purpose and scope of the project, including what is expected of the consultant?




		0-10

		

		



		2. Has the vendor demonstrated an understanding of the deliverables the City is expecting them to provide?

		0-10

		

		



		3. Has the vendor demonstrated an understanding of the schedule and can the vendor meet the schedule and timelines?

		0-5

		

		



		Maximum Evaluation Score:

		25

		

		





Experience and Qualification Section Evaluation:

		Criteria

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		Comments



		4. Does the proposed consultant (or consultants) have experience on similar projects?




		0-5

		

		



		5. Do they demonstrate proven experience in undertaking and successfully completing projects of this size?

		0-5

		

		



		6. How much of the consultant’s experience is working for municipalities or other government agencies similar to the City of Seattle?

		0-5

		

		



		7. Does the consultant have experience to address the specific requirements in the RFQ (for example, effective business process skills, communicating with senior level management, elicitation skills, etc)?

		0-10

		

		



		Maximum Evaluation Score:

		25

		

		





Total Score:


		Section

		Point Value

		Actual Score

		Comments



		Approach

		25

		

		



		Experience and Qualifications

		25

		

		



		References (to be completed by Project Manager)

		25

		

		





References (completed by Project Manager):

1. Does the vendor provide references for the proposed consultant(s)?


Score _________


Notes:


2. What was the quality of work performed by the proposer?


Score _________


Notes:


3. Was the project on time and on budget?

Score _________


Notes:


4. Please rate the quality of the proposer’s deliverables?  Were the deliverables accurate and complete?


Score _________


Notes:


Total possible points for References = 25
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City of Seattle

Purchasing Division


To:  

Interview Team 

From:



Re:


Thank you for serving on the Interview Team.   Some Teams may also require a Demonstration..

Purpose:  The Interview and/or demonstration is one of the final steps in the selection. The interview and demonstration provide a good opportunity to learn about the Bidder in ways a paper submittal doesn’t allow, and ensures a fair and equitable process for final presentations. Use a reasonably flexible process.  You want a fluid discourse, allowing some free-flow discussion to learn about the Bidder and their proposal.  The Interview Team brings City experts together to learn more from the Bidder about their approach, experience, qualifications, ideas and philosophy.  Interview Teams are asked to:


· Operate by the Interview rules and under the direction of the Buyer.

· Prepare a standard set of questions, so each interview includes at least the same questions, and a scoring matrix. 

· Document the interview, discussion, scores and resulting decisions.


Appointment to the Team:  The Buyer and Project Manager invite and appoint the Interview Team, seeking a mix of expert City users with various perspectives. A panel of 3 to 5 interview team members is optimum.  Larger groups have a difficult time arriving at decisions, and can be confusing to the Candidates. Members may be the same as those on the Evaluation Team.

Please remember Public Disclosure:


Interview notes and decisions are part of our public decision making process.  Your formal notes and score sheets will eventually become public and subject to public disclosure. Do not write down informal or personal notes. Remember:


· Do not make remarks or comments that you wouldn’t want to share with a public audience.


· Clearly organize your score sheets so they can be understood in the future. 


· Submit your materials and score sheets to the Buyer, in the event of a public disclosure.


Please maintain Confidentiality:

Continue to hold confidential the interview, questions, answers, decisions, information and your opinions until after the contract is awarded.  Do not have conversations, meals or contact with Vendors or others about the interview process until the contract is signed. 


Responsibility for Public Accountability:


Remember that the Interview Team decisions are subject to public accountability.  Make sure the interview questions, answers, and scored results from the panel are well-documented and have sufficient explanation so that a public reader could understand the decision you made.  Perform a fair interview of each candidate and set aside prejudices. Do not make written or verbal, derogatory or slanderous remarks about any Vendor, during the interview itself or in your Team review and notes.  Make only those remarks or notes that you would be willing to share directly to the Vendor.

Planning and Scoring your Interviews:


· Prepare a set of questions and a scoring matrix in advance.  You will want to ask the same questions of every Vendor, but you will also likely have unique questions to ask of each particular Vendor to help expand upon their proposal and address any concerns you may have after review of their proposal.  

· The scoring matrix should not be complex or detailed.  It just needs enough definition to help your team make a decision, and to explain where Candidates were strong and weak in their interview. You can use very general scores such as “Well Prepared, Less Prepared, Unprepared” or “10-5-1,” or you can chose to be specific, creating subcategories and specific matrixes for scored responses. 

Scoring Options


As you decide your scoring matrix, also decide how the interview decision will be made. The team together should decide whether they wish to use:


· Pass/Fail:  If you are selecting a pool of qualified vendors, you can use a Pass/Fail.  The pass/fail would require candidates to successfully “pass” the interview in order to proceed.


· Individual points and scores.  Team members scores and tabulate for the result.  You can have draft scores, which are then discussed by the team for final individual scores.  The total of all individual scores must then total up and reveal the winning candidate.


· Team consensus.  The team arrives at a consensus through discussion.  The team members together discuss the impressions from the interview, and reach a group consensus on the score and ranking of each firm.

Please do:


Before the interview:


· Make sure your interview process matches exactly to that published in the RFP.    If your RFP indicated an interview would occur, you can not waive the interview.


· The Evaluation Team gets to select how deep into the pool of vendors they wish to interview.  It should have a natural cut-off that is reasonably obvious; if they are all very closely clustered, favored more interviews rather than fewer.


· If you promised interviews, every finalist must undergo an interview.  Do not skip the top-ranked candidate because you know them already.

· Prepare a set of standard questions that will be asked of every candidate and custom questions for each Vendor to address any gaps, concerns or questions you might have unique to that Vendor.  Ask all the questions.


· You may send the interview questions to the Vendor in advance.  If you do so, be sure to send them to every Vendor equally and fairly, and ensure that each Vendor has the same advance time to prepare as all others.


· Prepare an introduction statement for the interviews, that provides each candidate with a welcome, an overview, introduces the Interview Team, provides a general summary of the selection process and next steps.  Ensure that you give the same introduction to each candidate.


· Figure out ahead of time, who will start the interview and who will ask questions.  It keeps it moving smoothly.


· Schedule the interviews for the same week.  You do not want to allow much time to elapse between candidate interviews, to reduce risks of leaking information, unfair advantage to the later teams with more time to prepare, or even gaps in time where team members lose their continuity. 


Instructing the Vendors


· The Buyer must give the Vendor instructions to prepare. Who must they bring to the interview? Who else can they bring?  Who is not allowed (for example, we would not allow anyone not party to the bid).  Can they bring laptops?  Can they perform a Powerpoint? Remind the vendor not to contact City personnel.  

Interview Guests are Limited:


· It is very rare, but what if someone shows up who doesn’t belong?  Perhaps the vendor brings a consultant, or a third-party who is trying to advocate for the vendor.  The only people at the interview should be those specifically connected with the proposal.  If a third-party shows up, stop the interview and ask the Company to spend 5 minutes to remove the person and resettle into the interview. 

If A Team Member Can Not Attend A Scheduled Interview:


· If a member is unable to attend due to illness or emergency, all efforts should be made to reschedule for when the full team is available.


· If the interview can not be rearranged, the Interview Team should decide whether it is most equitable, particularly from the perspective of the Vendors, to (a) disregard the scores of that member for all scored results on all candidates, or (b) proceed without the participation of the team member, or (c) substitute the team member.  A Team Consensus approach favors proceeding ahead.

If Your Company Doesn’t Show Up:


· If they fail to show up, you may reschedule to another date/time, particularly if it was due to circumstances beyond their control (snow, missed air flight).  Remember the objective of the interview is to get our best candidates in front of the Interview Team. 

    During the interview:


· Attend every interview for all candidates.  If you are not able to attend all interviews, please do not accept a position on the interview team.  


· You can ask unique questions to a particular vendor, to address particular gaps, issues, concerns, or ideas from the Vendor.  The goal is to understand the Vendor capabilities and experience as best as possible. 


· You can stop a Vendor if they are going off on the wrong track, or spending too much time on a particular point.


· Arrive ahead of schedule so that the Interview can begin on time for each company. 

· Do not leave the room during the interview.  Stay alert and listen attentively.


· Avoid changing the time, date or location of the interview.  This can be disruptive, or the Vendor may not receive clear notice of the room or time change, which can result in a complaint that they were unable to give their strongest presentation.


· You may “time” the interviews, allowing a maximum response time or interview slot.  If you chose to do so, then please be strict about holding every candidate to the same timeframe.


After the interview:


· Summarize the scores and results, and prepare a synopsis.


· If the interview gives new information and you might not have scored their written portion as high if you had known, do not go back and rescore the written segment unless your evaluation rules specifically allowed that.

Please do Not:


· Do not discuss any aspect or any opinion of this process, the Proposers, proposals, or rankings outside of the Interview Team forums;


· Do not accept gifts/meals or any type of gratuity or service from any Proposers;


· Do not give preferential treatment to any candidate.

Conflict of Interest:

In the event a conflict of interest might exist, it is in everyone’s best interest that the member be replaced on the Interview Team.  Please bring forward to the Buyer any situation that could be perceived to cause a Conflict of Interest.

We hope this provides a framework for the interview and demonstration process.  Thank you for your service on the Interview Team.  We appreciate your commitment to the process.
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		[bookmark: RANGE!A1:J83]Consultant Contract Invoice By Task

· This is original invoice

· This is a duplicate invoice



		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		For City 

		 

		

		



		

Date Invoice Sent to City



		Date

		 Date Invoice Received:

		

		 

		



		Consultant Name

		Consultant Name

		 

		

		 

		



		Contract Number

		Contract #

		 

		

		 

		



		Contract Title:

		Contract Title

		 

		

		 

		



		Work Authorization #

		If Applicable

		 

		 

		 

		



		Work Authorization Title: 

		If Applicable

		 

		

		

		



		Period Covered By

		Month/Day/Year to Month/Day/Year

		Consultant Mailing Address

		



		Consultant Invoice No. 

		#########

		Street Address, Suite #
City, State  Zip

		



		Consultant  Project # 

		If Applicable

		

		



		Consultant Project Rep 

		First Name Last Name

		Consultant Remittance Address

		



		Phone #

		(Area Code) ###-####

		Street Address, Suite #
City, State  Zip

		



		Email 

		Name@Company.com

		

		



		 City Project Manager

		Name of City PM

		 

Consultant Billing Office:

Name

Phone

Email

		



		

		Mail original hard-copy invoice to: 

City of Seattle

Mailing Address

Street Address, Suite #

City, State  Zip

Phone:



		

		

		

		

		








		Task # - Task Title

		

		

		

		

		



		Salary Costs 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Personnel

		Classification

		Hours

		Raw Rate

		Current Invoice Total

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00 

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00 

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00 

		



		

		

		Subtotal Raw Rates Salary Costs This Task

		

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		Overhead 

		0.0%

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		Fee

		0.0%

		 $                  -   

		



		

		











		

		

		

		

		

		Total Direct Salary Costs This Task

		 $              

		



		Direct Non-Salary Costs 

		 

		 

		

		

		

		

		



		Item

		Expense Category (List Subconsultants Separately)

		 

		Notes

		Current Invoice Total

		



		1

		Travel & Per Diem

		 

		 

		



		2

		Reproduction

		 

		 

		



		3

		Communication

		 

		 

		



		4

		Sampling & Testing

		 

		 

		



		5

		Sub-Consultants

		 

		 

		



		6

		Other 

		 

		 

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		Subtotal Direct Non-Salary Cost This Task

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Task # - Task Name

		Total Amount Due

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Task # - Task Name

		

		

		

		

		



		Salary Costs 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Personnel

		Classification

		Hours

		Raw Rate

		Current Invoice Total

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00

		



		

		

		Subtotal Raw Rates Salary Costs This Task

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		Overhead 

		0.0%

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		Fee

		0.0%

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		Total Direct Salary Costs This Task

		 $                  -   

		



		Direct Non-Salary Costs 

		 

		 

		

		

		

		

		



		Item

		Expense Category

		 

		Notes

		Current Invoice Total

		



		1

		Travel & Per Diem

		 

		 

		



		2

		Reproduction

		 

		 

		



		3

		Communication

		 

		 

		



		4

		Sampling & Testing

		 

		 

		



		5

		Sub-Consultants

		 

		 

		



		6

		Other 

		 

		 

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		Subtotal Direct Non-Salary Cost This Task

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Task # - Task Name

		Total Amount Due

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Task # - Task Name

		

		

		

		

		



		Salary Costs 

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Personnel

		Classification

		Hours

		Raw Rate

		Current Invoice Total

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00

		



		 

		 

		0

		0.00

		0.00

		



		

		

		Subtotal Raw Rates Salary Costs This Task

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		Overhead 

		0.0%

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		Fee

		0.0%

		 $                  -   

		



		

		



		

		

		

		

		

		Total Direct Salary Costs This Task

		 $       -   

		



		Direct Non-Salary Costs 

		 

		 

		

		

		

		

		



		Item

		Expense Category

		 

		Notes

		Current Invoice Total

		



		1

		Travel & Per Diem

		 

		 

		



		2

		Reproduction

		 

		 

		



		3

		Communication

		 

		 

		



		4

		Sampling & Testing

		 

		 

		



		5

		Sub-Consultants

		 

		 

		



		6

		Other 

		 

		 

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		Subtotal Direct Non-Salary Cost This Task

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		

		Task # - Task Name

		Total Amount Due

		 $                  -   

		



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		

		Total Amount Due This Invoice (Summary of All Tasks)
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ccInvoiceChecklist
Invoice Review Checklist





The City intends to pay you promptly.  Below is a checklist to ensure your payment will be processed quickly.  Provide this to the best person in your company for ensuring invoice quality control.



|_|    Send the invoices to the correct address:



City Department Address/Invoice Recipient: 





[bookmark: Check20]|_|     Validate that the time period for services performed is within the Contract Begin Date and Contract End Date. 



|_|     Ensure invoice items have not been previously billed or paid, given the time period for which services were performed. 



|_|     Ensure enough money remains on the contract (including amendments), to pay the invoice. 



|_|     Ensure the Labor Rates match the most current approved rate sheet. 



|_|     Ensure the Overhead Rate and Fee used in calculating personnel costs match the most current approved rate sheet. 



|_|     Ensure the Direct Charges on the invoice are allowable by contract. 



|_|     Eliminate unallowable costs (e.g. Traveling Business or First Class, Alcoholic Beverages, etc) 



|_|     Verify that personnel named are explicitly allowed for within the contract or most current approved rate sheet. 



|_|     Ensure WMBE utilization is provided to the City and/or entered into the City on-line system. 



|_|     Check the math. 



|_|     Ensure back-up documentation is adequate and complete. 



|_|     Verify invoice number and make sure it is not a duplicate or previously submitted. Duplicate invoices will confuse and delay your payment. Contact the City if you think a duplicate invoice is needed, before you send one. 



Definitions 

· [bookmark: _GoBack]Services:  Deliverables or work performed by the consultant including analysis, advice, recommendations, report preparation, design development, and other specialized services. 

· Direct Charges:  Non‐Salary expenses that are necessary and directly applicable to the work required by the contract, for example, Travel & Per Diem, Reproduction Expenses, Office Supplies, and Sub-consultants, and other reimbursables. 

· Contract End Date:  The date the contract expires. Consultants may not work after this date. 
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City of Seattle

City Purchasing & Contracting Services Division

To:  
Evaluation Committee Members


From:



Re:


Thank you for serving on the Evaluation Team.  As ENTER TITLE, I work as Committee chair, facilitator and Consultant to the Team on contractual and procedural matters; I am a non-voting member.  Below is an introduction to the evaluation process.


Purpose:  Evaluation Teams are established by the ENTER TITLE, with the advice of the Project Manager, to bring together City experts for technical review, input and recommendations.  The team advises on specifications, the solicitation, evaluation and award.  Teams:


· Are formalized, responding by invitation and appointment from the ENTER TITLE;


· Operate by the Evaluation process rules and under the direction of the ENTER TITLE;


· Will set an established scheduled of meeting times; and

· Document the activity, the discussions and all resulting decisions.


Appointment to the Team:  The ENTER TITLE, with the advice and consultation of the Project Manager, invites and appoints customers to the Team, seeking a mix of expert City users with various perspectives.   


Summary of Duties:


1. ENTER TITLE:  The ENTER TITLE serves as Chair and manages the process, including facilitation of the meetings and decisions.    


2. Evaluation Team:  Team is a group of expert users with interest in the product, typically 3 to 7 members. Membership should have an odd number. Teams convene early to provide input on specifications, the ITB/RFP document before it is published, and to determine how the Team will score/evaluation the incoming proposals.  For bids, the Evaluation Team would only need to review the technical response to ensure compliance with specifications.  For RFPs, the Team will meet to score proposals and may also interview.

3. Interviews and/or Demos:  For standard processes, the team may chose to skip or perform interviews.  For software or highly technical needs, the Team may also require a product demonstration. If the Team declares  interviews or demonstrations to be important, they are added as an additional step and  published in the RFP.

What if an Evaluation Member can not complete the process? Occasionally, a team member must drop out of the process during the scoring.  If so, the Team should continue scoring.  The ENTER TITLE can either (1) simply delete the team members scores from consideration; (2) continue ahead, and include the scores for those portions that the Evaluation Team member scored, (3) replace the team member with another City expert that has reasonable background.  Our objective is to keep the project going, while still being fair to all bidders.

Please remember Public Disclosure:


This process, the information, decisions, materials and notes, are eventually all public and subject to public disclosure. Remember:


· Personal notes and drafts may be discarded.  However, if a public disclosure request arrives before your personal notes are discarded, those notes become public.


· Do not make remarks or comments that you are not comfortable sharing with a public audience.


· Clearly organize the documentation of the Team selection so it can be understood in the future.

· Give the ENTER TITLE the documents that best summarize the Team decision, so that they are properly saved in the event of a public disclosure request.


Please maintain Confidentiality:

All documents, decisions, information and opinions are confidential throughout the process.  Do not share to anyone outside of Team meetings. Do not have conversations, meals or contact with Consultants or others about the evaluation until the contract is signed.  


Responsibility for Public Accountability:


Remember that the Team decisions and materials are subject to public accountability.  Make sure the team decisions are documented and have sufficient explanation that the public reader could understand the decision you made.  Perform a fair evaluation of each proposal and set aside prejudices. Do not make, written or verbal, any derogatory or slanderous remarks about any Consultant.  Make only those remarks or notes that you would be willing to share directly to the Consultant.

Fair, prudent and thorough evaluation:


The process is to be fair to all bidders, to be thoughtful and deliberative.  It is an important responsibility that preserves the integrity of the public bid process.  


Please do:


· Refer all questions from those external to the Team to the ENTER TITLE.


· Refer all requests for proposal clarification to the ENTER TITLE.


· Attend all meetings. 


Please do Not:


· Do not discuss any aspect or any opinion of this process, the Proposers, proposals, or proposal ranking outside of the Committee forum;


· Do not accept gifts/meals or any type of gratuity or service from any Proposers;


· Do not give preferential treatment to any Proposer.


Conflict of Interest:

In the event a conflict of interest might exist, it is in everyone’s best interest that the member be replaced on the Committee.  Please bring forward to the ENTER TITLE any situation that could be perceived to cause a Conflict of Interest.

Procedures and Responsibilities:


Here is a summary of the specific steps in the process.




Before Solicitation is Released:


· ENTER TITLE invites and appoints members to participate, consulting with the Project Manager.

· Teams meet to provide input on the ITB/RFP scope, specifications and any mandatory qualifications. Team provides the ENTER TITLE input and comments on the draft ITB/RFP

· For an RFP, the Evaluation Team prepares evaluation criteria and total possible scores for each criteria.  The Team will decide if they wish to require interviews or demonstrations.

· Bid/RFP is released.

· ENTER TITLE may invite team to the pre-bid conference.


· ENTER TITLE schedules Evaluation Team to finalize the evaluation package, get comments and input on evaluation materials, criteria, scoring matrix.  This is to be completed before bids are released, and must in all cases be finished before bids are received.

· Before the RFP/ITB is published, ENTER TITLE must schedule Evaluation Team for evaluation meetings that will take place after the responses arrive.  These evaluation meetings are to begin no later than one week after the bid due date, for multiple days and will be consecutive days if possible. Evaluation Team meetings will be held in City Purchasing, or other City offices if necessary and as scheduled by the ENTER TITLE.

· Before the RFP is published, the ENTER TITLE will also schedule the Evaluation Team for slots of time for interviews, if any interviews are intended. 

After Solicitations are Received: 


· ENTER TITLE reviews all responses for responsiveness and responsibility. 

· ENTER TITLE brings responsive and responsible bids to the Team.


· First evaluation meeting:  ENTER TITLE will typically conduct the meeting, provide guidelines and instructions.  ENTER TITLE gives copies of eligible responses and scoring matrix materials.  ENTER TITLE schedules additional meetings as needed.    


· A team member is appointed to record decisions, notes and scores.


· Materials and proposal responses are kept at City Purchasing in-between meetings, unless the ENTER TITLE specifically authorizes materials to be removed from City Purchasing offices.


· Team makes recommendations to the ENTER TITLE.


· Team gathers and gives materials, notes, score sheets, and documentation, to ENTER TITLE for official Contract File.

· If interviews or demonstrations were promised in the RFP, the ENTER TITLE and Team will then continue with interviews.

· ENTER TITLE will continue with negotiations and contract awards.



Review of some key steps in the process:


Evaluation Criteria


Under the ENTER TITLE guidance, the Team builds evaluation criteria.  A brief criteria is published in the solicitation.  This does not need to be very specific.  Once published, the Team must follow those criteria.  Before responses are due, the Team prepares a scoring matrix for scoring and/or ranking of responses. 

The Team may use a combination of evaluation techniques.  There may be multiple steps in the screening process, and each step can use a different technique:

· An optional Preliminary Pass/Fail Screen:  In this technique, the Consultant must pass through a basic threshold pass/fail screen, usually on the most important items.  The pass/fail would evaluate responses to determine those that are competitive on the most important items, sending only those competitive Consultants forward for further evaluation.


· Pricing:  In any RFP, the pricing should get 25 to 30% of total points.  The scores for price are determined and calculated by the ENTER TITLE, using a specific pricing formula (lowest price gets full points; all others are scored in direct proportion to the lowest price).


· Individual points and scores.  Uses scores from individuals to tabulate and/or average the result.  These could be first preliminary scores, which are then discussed by the team for final individual scores.  The total of all individual scores will then be the award recommendation to Purchasing.

· Team consensus.  The team arrives at a consensus through discussion.  The individuals review the responses, and arrive at the team meeting prepared for discussion and group consensus on the ranking of each firm.  This is not intended to be just adding up and/or averaging individual points (see above “Individual Points”), but instead is a score arrived at by team discussion. 

· It may develop that members of the Team will not always arrive at the same conclusions. The Team should discuss individual differences, which may help bring consensus or allow each member to retain his/her independent thinking and score that will be averaged with the other evaluations. 

· Should the Team need clarification from the Consultant or additional materials, that will be managed by the ENTER TITLE.  The ENTER TITLE would determine if such clarification or materials are appropriate and do no disrupt the integrity of the process before making such requests of the Consultant(s).

Interviews and Demonstrations


The Team will prepare for interviews and demonstrations, using the guidance for that process from the ENTER TITLE.


Recommendation

The Team prepares a recommendation.  This recommendation may need to route first through an Executive Board, but will then be made to the ENTER TITLE. This may include certain stipulations, such as negotiation of particular items.  The recommendation must match the scores and ranking.  The ENTER TITLE ensures the recommendation is consistent and appropriate.  An advisory board or director boards may receive a briefing and/or give approval

Announcement of Intention to Award


The ENTER TITLE makes an announcement to Consultants of intention to award.  The Team is still bound to confidentiality.  Any inquiries from any sources are to be referred to the ENTER TITLE.


Negotiations


Negotiations are only allowed for an RFP; an ITB can not be negotiated. RFP negotiations are only allowed with the highest ranked Proposer.  If such negotiations fail, then the highest-ranked is rejected and negotiations may resume with the next ranked response.  The ENTER TITLE manages negotiations.  Items for negotiations will be limited by the ENTER TITLE:


· Typically, only scope of work and reconciliation to conflicting terms are negotiated. 


· Negotiations to reduce the scope of work to within a maximum budget are rare but may be allowable if sufficient instruction was given in the RFP to allow such negotiations.


· If a Consultant proposed a change to a traditional contract clause, term or condition, the ENTER TITLE will decide if that change is of interest to Purchasing.  If so, the ENTER TITLE will so-advice the Project Manager.  The ENTER TITLE may then negotiate those suggested changes as well.  Although Purchasing Services has upon occasion, negotiated contract clauses and conditions, Purchasing requires all Proposers and Bidders to accept the base contract as mandatory and not subject to negotiation.  Proposers may suggest a contract change, but Purchasing is not obligated to accept such changes. 

In closing, we hope this provides a framework for the evaluation process.  Thank you for your service on the Evaluation Team.  We appreciate your commitment to the process.
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